
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Central Bedfordshire 
Council 
Priory House 
Monks Walk 
Chicksands,  
Shefford SG17 5TQ 

 
  

  
please ask for Leslie Manning 

direct line 0300 300 5132 

date 13 June 2013 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

 
Date & Time 

Monday, 24 June 2013 1.30 p.m. 
 

Venue at 

Council Chamber, Priory House, Monks Walk, Shefford 
 
 

 
Richard Carr 
Chief Executive 

 

PLEASE NOTE THE START TIME 
 
To:     The Chairman and Members of the AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 

Cllrs: M C Blair (Chairman), D Bowater (Vice-Chairman), R D Berry, 
N B Costin, Mrs D B Green, D J Lawrence and A Zerny 
 

 
[Named Substitutes: 
 
Mrs J G Lawrence, A Shadbolt, M A Smith and N Warren] 

 
 

All other Members of the Council - on request 
 
 

MEMBERS OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE WELCOME TO ATTEND THIS 

MEETING 
 



 

AGENDA 

 
 

1. Apologies for Absence 
  

To receive apologies for absence and notification of substitute Members. 
 

2. Minutes 
  

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Audit 
Committee held on 8 April 2013 (copy attached).   
 

3. Members' Interests 
  

To receive from Members any declarations of interest. 
 

4. Chairman's Announcements and Communications 
  

To receive any announcements from the Chairman and any matters of 
communication. 
 

5. Petitions 
  

To receive petitions from members of the public in accordance with the Public 
Participation Procedure as set out in Annex 2 of Part A4 of the Constitution.  
 

6. Questions, Statements or Deputations 
  

To receive any questions, statements of deputations from members of the 
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in 
Annex 1 of Part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

 
Reports 

 

Item Subject Page Nos. 

7 Central Bedfordshire Statement of Accounts 2012/13 
 
To receive a presentation on the draft Statement of 
Accounts for 2012/13. 
 

  

8 Audit and Certification Fees 2013/14 
 
To receive the Audit Fee letter from Ernst & Young LLP 
setting out the audit and certification fees for 2013/14. 
 

*  13 - 16 



 
9 Audit Progress Report 

 
To receive a report from Ernst & Young LLP setting out 
both the progress made against the 2012/13 audit plan to 
date and key issues that may impact on the local 
government sector and which may be of interest to 
Members. 
 

*  17 - 36 

10 Annual Governance Statement 
 
To consider the draft Annual Governance Statement. 
 

+    To Follow 
  

11 Internal Audit Annual Audit Opinion 
 
To consider the annual report to those charged with 
governance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of 
Central Bedfordshire Council’s financial and other 
management internal controls. 
 

*  37 - 60 

12 Tracking of Audit Recommendations 
 
To consider a summary of the high risk recommendations 
arising from the Internal Audit reports together with the 
progress made in their implementation. 
 

*  61 - 74 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



CENTRAL BEDFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

At a meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE held in Room 15, Priory House, 
Chicksands, Shefford on Monday, 8 April 2013 

 
PRESENT 

 
Cllr D Bowater (Chairman) 

Cllr M C Blair (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 
Cllrs N B Costin 

Mrs D B Green 
 

Cllrs D J Lawrence 
A Zerny 
 

 

Apologies for Absence: Cllr A Shadbolt 
 

 

Substitutes: Cllr R D Berry (In place of A Shadbolt) 
 

 

Members in Attendance: Cllr M R Jones  
 

 
Officers in Attendance: Mr C Dilley Strategic Design Authority 

Manager  
 Mr L Manning Committee Services Officer 
 Ms K Riches Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
 Mr M Scott Head of Information Assets 
 Mr N Visram Financial Controller 
 Mr C Warboys Chief Finance Officer 

 
 

Others In Attendance: Mr M West Ernst & Young LLP 
 

 
A/13/37   Minutes  

 
RESOLVED 
 
that the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Committee held on 7 January 
2013 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman as a 
correct record. 
 

 
A/13/38   Members' Interests  

 
Councillor Bowater declared an interest with regard to item 12 (Risk Update 
Report).  The reason given for the declaration was that Councillor Bowater 
served as a Partnership Governor (Local Authority) on the Council of 
Governors for the South Essex Partnership University NHS Foundation Trust 
(SEPT). 
 

 

Agenda Item 2
Page 5



AUD -  08.04.13 
Page 2  

 

 

A/13/39   Chairman's Announcements and Communications  
 
The Chairman reminded Members that it had been agreed at the last meeting 
of the Committee (minute A/12/32 refers) that all Central Bedfordshire 
councillors should be invited to attend a presentation on the unaudited 
accounts at the meeting on 24 June.  He advised that the invitation had been 
issued but that it had subsequently been established that the flag raising 
ceremony for Armed Forces Day was scheduled to take place at Priory House 
that same morning.  Members’ views were therefore sought on rescheduling 
the Committee so that it started during the early afternoon instead.  In view of 
these circumstances Members fully concurred with the meeting starting at 1.30 
p.m. on 24 June. 
 
The Chairman welcomed Matt Scott (Head of Information Assets) and Clive 
Dilley (Strategic Design Authority Manager) to their first meeting of the 
Committee.  
 

 
A/13/40   Petitions  

 
No petitions were received from members of the public in accordance with the 
Public Participation Procedure as set out in Annex 2 of Part A4 of the 
Constitution. 
 

 
A/13/41   Questions, Statements or Deputations  

 
No questions, statements or deputations were received from members of the 
public in accordance with the Public Participation Procedure as set out in 
Annex 1 of Part A4 of the Constitution. 
 

 
A/13/42   Audit Plan  

 
The Committee received a report by Ernst & Young LLP on the Audit Plan. The 
report was introduced by the Ernst & Young Director present.  Members noted 
that the purpose of the report was to provide the Committee with a basis to 
review the proposed audit approach and scope for the 2012-2013 audit, in 
accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code 
of Audit Practice, the Standing Guidance, auditing standards and other 
professional requirements and, in addition, to ensure the audit was aligned with 
the Committee’s service expectations. 
 
In connection with the reference to scale fees within the report the Head of 
Internal Audit and Risk advised the meeting that the Audit Commission had 
refunded £19,560 to the Council. 
 
NOTED 
 
the Audit Plan for 2012/13. 
 

 

Agenda Item 2
Page 6



AUD -  08.04.13 
Page 3  

 

 

A/13/43   Audit Progress Report  
 
The Committee received the Audit Progress Report for the year ending 31 
March 2013 from Ernst & Young LLP.  The report, which was introduced by the 
Ernst & Young Director present, set out the work undertaken to date by the 
auditor since its appointment on 1 September 2012 and provided an overview 
of the stage reached by Ernst & Young in planning the Council’s 2012/13 audit. 
 
The following issues were covered by the report: 
 

• Meetings (with key officers and other stakeholders) 

• Identification of significant and other risks 

• Completion of walk throughs and tests of control 

• Value for money conclusion assessment 

• Grant claim certification 
 
In addition the report provided a timetable showing the key stages of the audit 
by Ernst & Young. 
 
The meeting noted that, to date, no significant risks had been identified by the 
auditor. 
 
NOTED 
 
the Audit Progress Report. 
 

 
A/13/44   Development of Disaster Recovery Plan  

 
The Committee considered a slide pack which provided an update on the 
Information Assets Disaster Recovery Plan.  A revised slide pack, which 
included a list and explanation of the acronyms used within the pack, was 
circulated at the meeting. 
 
Following a general introduction by the Head of Information Assets the 
Strategic Design Authority Manager worked through the slide pack, highlighting 
particular aspects for Members’ information.  
 
Members were first updated on developments in Information Assets (IA) 
disaster recovery which had taken place since September 2012 before 
receiving an outline of current activities which sought to provide greatly 
enhanced resilience and recovery measures in IA should a disaster occur.   
The Strategic Design Authority Manager then described future planned 
activities which focused on the migration of the production Data Centre from 
Bedford to a new co-location primary site, the migration of non-production 
servers from Watling House to a new co-location secondary site and, in the 
second half of 2013, a dry run Disaster Recovery test followed by an Active-
Passive Disaster Recovery test. 
 
Discussion followed during which the Strategic Design Authority Manager, in 
response to Members’ queries, clarified aspects of the IA Disaster Recovery 

Agenda Item 2
Page 7



AUD -  08.04.13 
Page 4  

 

 

Plan and related aspects of IT provision.  He concluded by asking Members to 
contact him should they have any further queries. 
 
NOTED 
 
the Information Assets Disaster Recovery Plan update. 
 

 
A/13/45   2013-14 Annual Audit Plan, Strategic Audit Plan and Internal Audit 

Strategy  
 
The Committee considered a report by the Chief Finance Officer which 
presented the 2013/14 Annual Audit Plan and the Strategic Audit Plan for 
review and approval.  The report also summarised the minor revisions made to 
the Internal Audit Strategy. 
 
The meeting noted that the Internal Audit Plan was a high level statement of 
how the Internal Audit Service would be delivered in order to meet the 
requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations and the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards.  A strategy had been prepared in April 2010 and had 
been updated regularly.  The following revisions had been made for 2013/14: 
 

• Reference to the new Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards 

• The introduction of “assurance mapping” of key risks 

• The Fighting Fraud Locally initiative, and 

• The appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as the Council’s external 
auditors. 

 
The Committee’s approval of the revisions was sought. 
 
The meeting then turned to consider the 2013/14 Annual Audit Plan and 
Strategic Audit Plan.  The meeting noted that the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards only required a detailed audit plan to cover a period of one year.  
However, a strategic plan had also been produced to demonstrate how the 
Internal Audit Service planned to provide assurance over the next three years 
in key areas.  Members further noted that the plan would be reviewed, updated 
and expanded prior to the start of each financial year to provide more detail of 
the reviews to be undertaken.  A copy of the Internal Audit Plan was attached 
at Appendix A to the report. 
 
In response to a Member’s reference to assurance audits for Children’s 
Services and his comment regarding the threat of reputational risk the Head of 
Internal Audit and Risk stated that it would be possible to include assurance 
that action plans were being followed. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the proposed 2013/14 Annual Audit Plan and Strategic Audit Plan 
2013/14-2015/16, together with the revised Internal Audit Strategy, be 
approved.  
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 8



AUD -  08.04.13 
Page 5  

 

 

 
A/13/46   Internal Audit Progress Report  

 
The Committee considered a report by the Chief Finance Officer which 
provided a progress update on the status of Internal Audit work for 2012/13 up 
to the end of February 2013. 
 
The report set out progress on the 2012/13 Internal Audit Plan including: 

 

• Managed Audits 

• Other Audit Work 

• National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 

• Fraud and Special Investigations 

• Schools 

• Performance Management 

• Internal Audit Charter 
 
The Head of Internal Audit and Risk introduced the report, highlighting 
particular issues for Members’ attention as she did so.  With regard to 
Performance Management, and specifically to key performance indicator 
KP103 (percentage of audit reviews completed within the planned time 
budget), the Head of Internal Audit and Risk advised that consideration was 
being given to streamlining the reporting process for introduction in the new 
Financial Year.  The Chief Finance Officer added that the proposed change 
would introduce a level of flexibility into the target figure. 
 
A Member queried the timeliness of audit work in assisting those schools 
converting to Academies.  In response the Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
stated that audit officers provided full support by attending school meetings 
which dealt with the conversion to Academy status and paid especial interest to 
pensions and payroll as these issues had a major impact on the smoothness of 
the transition.  In response to a query the Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
indicated that the Council provided sufficient audit resources to offer effective 
support during the conversion process.  The Chief Finance Officer stressed 
that a dedicated officer team monitored schools’ financial position throughout 
the year and not just during the time of conversion. 
 
The meeting was advised of revisions to the Council’s Internal Audit Charter 
which include reference to the New Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and 
the appointment of Ernst and Young LLP as the Council’s external auditors. 
 
NOTED 
 
the progress made against the 2012/13 Internal Audit Plan 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that the revisions to the Internal Audit Charter, as set out in the report of 
the Chief Finance Officer, be approved. 
 

 

Agenda Item 2
Page 9



AUD -  08.04.13 
Page 6  

 

 

A/13/47   Risk Update Report  
 
The Committee considered a report by the Chief Finance Officer which 
provided an overview of the Council’s risk position as at March 2013.  The 
Head of Internal Audit and Risk provided an introduction to the report and 
highlighted changes to the Strategic and Operational Risk matrices.   
 
With reference to Strategic Risk STR0008 regarding the significant loss or ICT 
failure of core business systems including but not limited to: SAP, ECM, 
CCMS, Swift, Tribal, Accolaid, Open Revenues, QL Housing and Strategic Risk 
STR00016 regarding a core infrastructure failure of Datacentre Environment, 
SAN and/or CBC Network the Head of Internal Audit and Risk stated that she 
would be meeting with the Head of Information Assets and the Strategic Design 
Authority Manager Information Assets to discuss these items.  She also 
advised the meeting that a workshop was to be held to consider what new 
emerging risks, if any, were apparent. 
 
A Member expressed concern regarding Strategic Risk STR0010 on the 
protection of children and to the new Operational Risk RES050008 which 
related to insufficient ICT staff resources/capacity to respond to incidents, 
changes and planned project work.   The Committee felt that these Risks 
should be referred to the relevant overview and scrutiny committees for 
consideration. 
 
Another Member also expressed concern regarding Operational Risks 
SCH0004, regarding insufficient staff resources resulting in the under or mis-
direction of investment in the transformation of adult social care services, and 
SCH0008, regarding insufficient capacity, expertise and competency to deliver 
the Adult Social Care and Housing agenda.  The Committee was of the opinion 
that these Risks should be referred to the Health and Wellbeing Board for 
consideration. 
 
NOTED 
 
the strategic and operational risks facing Central Bedfordshire Council as 
set out in the risk summary dashboard attached at Appendix A to the 
report of the Chief Finance Officer. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
1 that, in view of the Audit Committee’s concern regarding the risk 

ratings of Strategic Risk STR0010 and Operational Risk 
RES050008, these Risks be referred to the Children’s Services and 
Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
respectively for consideration; 

 
2 that, in view of the Audit Committee’s concern regarding the risk 

ratings of Operational Risks SCH0004 and SCH0008, these Risks 
be referred to the Health and Wellbeing Board for consideration.  

 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 10



AUD -  08.04.13 
Page 7  

 

 

 
A/13/48   Tracking of Audit Recommendations  

 
The Committee considered a report by the Chief Finance Officer which 
summarised the high risk recommendations arising from Internal Audit reports.  
The report also outlined how the recommendations would be monitored and 
progress made in implementing them as at the end of February 2013. 
 
Particular consideration was given to the four outstanding recommendations 
made prior to April 2012 in relation to the following: 

 

• Main Accounting System 2009-10 

• Payroll 2009-10 

• Teachers’ Pensions 

• SAP Access and Security (inc IT Disaster Recovery) 2009- 10 
 
The meeting was of the opinion that should the tracking report to the next 
Committee reveal the absence of any improvement in the rates of slippage 
then the relevant overview and scrutiny committee(s) should be advised. 
 
A Member used the opportunity to comment that there were areas of land 
which had no recorded ownership but which could belong to the Council.  
However, no attempt had been made to establish whether or not any of the 
land did belong to the Council which, if it did, could be included on the 
Council’s Assets Register.  He suggested that investigative action be taken.  In 
response the Chief Finance Officer emphasised that everything belonging to 
the Council with a value was already included on the Register.  The Chairman 
encouraged the Member to notify officers should he be aware of any 
unrecorded Council asset.  The Committee expressed concern at the level of 
resources required to undertake the action suggested by the Member when the 
outcome was so uncertain. 
 
NOTED 
 
the report on the high risk recommendations arising from Internal Audit 
reports and the progress made in implementing these as at the end of 
February 2013. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
that should the tracking report to the next Committee reveal the absence 
of any improvement in the rates of slippage with regard to the four 
outstanding recommendations made prior to April 2012 then the relevant 
overview and scrutiny committee(s) be advised. 
 

 
A/13/49   2013/14 Audit Committee Outline Work Programme  

 
Members considered a report by the Chief Finance Officer which set out the 
proposed work programme for the Committee for the 2013/14 municipal year. 

Agenda Item 2
Page 11



AUD -  08.04.13 
Page 8  

 

 

 
RESOLVED 
 
that the proposed work programme for the Audit Committee for 2013/14, 
as set out at Appendix A to the Chief Finance Officer’s report, be 
approved. 
 

 
(Note: The meeting commenced at 9.30 a.m. and concluded at 10.55 a.m.) 
 
 

Chairman …………….………………. 
 

Dated …………………………………. 
 

Agenda Item 2
Page 12



Ernst & Young LLP 
400 Capability Green 
Luton 
LU1 3LU 
 
www.ey.com 

 

 

Richard Carr 

Chief Executive 

Central Bedfordshire Council  

Priory House   

Monks Walk  

Chicksands  

Shefford  

Bedfordshire SG17 5TQ 

 

 

XXX Chief Executive Address XXX 

17 April 2013 
  

Ref:  27504922 2013-14 

 

Direct line: 020 7951 2000 

 

Email: MWest@uk.ey.com  

 

Dear Richard  

 

Central Bedfordshire Council 

Audit and certification fees 2013-14 

We are writing to confirm the 2013-14 audit and certification work we propose to undertake. The 

2013-14 fees reflect the risk-based approach promoted by the Audit Commission for audit and 

certification work.   

Planned audit fee 

The audit fee covers the work we perform to provide our: 

� Opinion on the financial statements 

� Value for money conclusion 

� Report to the National Audit Office on the Whole of Government Accounts 

The Audit Commission has set scales of fees as part of its five year procurement exercise. It has 

indicated scale fees are not liable to increase in that period unless there is a change in scope. For 

2013-14 the Audit Commission has set a scale fee for each audited body.  The scale fee is based on 

certain assumptions, including: 

� The overall level of risk in relation to the audit of the financial statements, Whole of Government 

Accounts and proper arrangements is not significantly different from that of the prior year 

� Reliance can be placed on the work of internal audit to the maximum extent possible under 

auditing standards 

� The financial statements will be available in line with the agreed timetable 

� Working papers and records provided in support of the financial statements are of a good quality 

and are provided in line with the agreed timetable 

� Prompt responses are provided to draft audit reports 

  

Agenda Item 8
Page 13



2 

 

Meeting these assumptions will help ensure the delivery of an audit at the audit scale fee.  

We have set the planned audit fee at the scale fee level which assumes the overall level of risk in 

relation to the audit of the 2013-14 financial statements, Whole of Government Accounts and value 

for money conclusion is not significantly different from that of 2012-13. The 2012-13 audit is in 

progress. We will update our risk assessment and undertake more detailed planning for the 2013-14 

audit after we complete the 2012-13 audit.   

Certification fee  

The Audit Commission has set a composite indicative fee for certification work for each audited body. 

The indicative fee is based on actual 2011-12 certification fees adjusted to reflect the fact that a 

number of schemes will no longer require auditor certification, and incorporating a 40 per cent 

reduction. 

The composite indicative fee is based on the expectation that an audited body is able to provide the 

auditor with complete and materially accurate claims and returns, with supporting working papers, 

within agreed timeframes.  

The indicative certification fee for 2013-14 relates to work on grant claims and returns for the year 

ended 31 March 2014.  We have set the certification fee at the composite indicative fee level which 

assumes the same level of work on claims and returns as 2011-12. We will update our risk assessment 

after we complete 2012-13 certification work and to reflect further changes in the Audit Commission’s 

certification arrangements. 

Summary of fees 

 Planned fee 

2013-14 

£ 

Planned fee 

2012-13 

£ 

Actual fee 

2011-12 

£ 

Code audit fee                                                      184,885 184,885 308,142  

Certification fee                                                      52,100 45,350 90,006  

Non-audit work                                                                  0 0 0  

 

The certification fee for 2011-12 includes £10,760 on follow up work on the 2010-11 housing and 

council tax benefit claim. In response to queries raised by the Department for Work and Pensions on 

the 2011-12 claim the Council is carrying out additional testing, the results of which we are required 

to review. The estimated fee for this additional certification work of £8,000 is not included above.    

The planned audit and certification fees will be billed in quarterly instalments of £59,246. 

Any additional work that we may agree to undertake (outside of the Audit Code of Practice) will be 

separately negotiated and agreed with you in advance. No non-audit work is planned at the date of this 

letter. 

 

. 

  

Agenda Item 8
Page 14



3 

 

 

Audit plan 

We will issue our 2013-14 audit plan for the audit of the financial statements, Whole of Government 

Accounts and proper arrangements in March 2014.  This will detail the financial statement and value 

for money conclusion risks identified, planned audit procedures to respond to those risks, and any 

changes in fee.  Should we need to make any significant amendments to the audit fee during the 

course of the audit, we will discuss this in the first instance with the Chief Finance Officer and, if 

necessary, prepare a report outlining the reasons for the fee change for discussion with the Audit 

Committee.   

Audit team 

The key members of the audit team for 2013-14 are: 

Mick West  

Director 

 

Email address 

MWest@uk.ey.com 

 

Tel: 01582 643000 

Cathy O’Carroll 

Manager 

 

Email address 

cocarroll@uk.ey.com 

 

Tel: 07967 624334 

 

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service.  If at any time you would like to discuss 

with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are 

receiving, please contact me.  If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our 

Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF.  We undertake to look into any complaint 

carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you.  Should you remain 

dissatisfied with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our professional 

institute. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Mick West  

Director 

Ernst & Young LLP 

United Kingdom 

cc.  Charles Warboys, Chief Finance Officer  

 Councillor David Bowater, Chairman of the Audit Committee 

Agenda Item 8
Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Central Bedfordshire Council 

Year ending 31 March 2013 

Audit Progress Report 

June 2013 

Agenda Item 9
Page 17



 

Ernst & Young  i 

 Councillor Mike Blair  

Chairman Audit Committee 

Central Bedfordshire  Council 

Priory House  

Monks Walk  

Shefford 

Bedfordshire  SG17 5TQ 

 

 7thJune  2013 

Dear Mike    

Audit progress report - 2012-13 

We are pleased to attach our audit progress report.  

The purpose of this report is to provide the Audit Committee with an overview of the stage we have 

reached in carrying out your 2012-13 audit. Our report sets out the work we have undertaken since 

our last progress report to you in April 2013.  

This report also includes, at Appendix 2, a sector briefing which covers issues which may have an 

impact on your council, the local government sector and the audits that we undertake. This briefing is 

one of the ways that we hope to continue to support you and your organisation in an environment that 

is constantly changing and evolving.  

 

We welcome the opportunity to discuss this report with you as well as understand whether there are 

other matters which you consider may influence our audit.  

Yours sincerely 

Mick West 

Director 

For and behalf of Ernst & Young LLP 

Enc  

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 18



 

Ernst & Young  i 

Contents 

1. Work completed .................................................................................................. 2 

2. Timetable ........................................................................................................... 4 

Appendix 1: Audit Progress on Deliverables ................................................................. 5 

Appendix 2: Audit Committee Briefing ........................................................................ 5 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 19



Work completed 

Ernst & Young  2 

1. Work completed 

2012-13 Audit Plan  

The Audit Plan for 2012-13 was presented to the Audit Committee at its meeting in April 

2013. The plan set out the financial statements and value for money conclusion risks that 

we had identified and our proposed response to those risks. Nothing has come to our 

attention since then that would require us to amend our plan.   

Completion of walkthroughs and tests of control 

We have completed our walkthroughs and controls testing with the exception of the asset 

management walkthrough. A number of the stages in this walkthrough relate to the 

financial year end and therefore this work will be completed as part of the audit of the 

financial statements. Our work to date has not identified any issues that we need to bring to 

your attention as those charged with governance. 

Financial Statements  

The detailed work on the statement of accounts will take place from July to September 

2013. We will report our findings in the Annual Governance Report to the 24th September 

Audit Committee.  

 
Value for money conclusion assessment 

Our work on the value for money conclusion is largely complete. Our provisional 

conclusion, 

based on work completed to April 2013, is that the Council has proper arrangements in 

place to meet the two specified criteria. We will revisit this conclusion once the final 

outturn 

position for 2012-13 is known and report our conclusion in the Annual Governance Report.  

 

Grant claim certification 

We have just started work on the housing and council tax benefits subsidy claim for 2012-

13. This is earlier than in previous years. This year the Council was able to submit the final 

claim for audit by the due date of 30th April, last year problems with CIVICA meant that a 

final claim could not be submitted for audit until 30th July. Work on the on the other claims 

to be certified will start in August. 

In May 2013 we responded to the DWP (Department of Works and Pensions) on queries that 

had been raised with your officers, by the DWP, on our Qualification Letter on the 2011-12 

housing and council tax benefits claim. The DWP had requested further information on the 

Council’s arrangements for identifying cases that require a rent officer referral. We were 

able to confirm the arrangements that have been put in place for identifying such cases.  

In addition your officers had carried out additional work on cells in the claim where we had 

reported extrapolated errors. We re- performed this work and were able to report revised 

extrapolations to the DWP. The Council has yet to receive a response from the DWP. The fee 

for this additional work will be £8,000 and was agreed with officers before we started the 

work. 

2013-14 Audit Fee  

The fee letter has been issued to officers and is included in the agenda for this meeting of 

the Audit Committee. The Audit Commission has set scales of fees as part of its five year 

procurement exercise. It has indicated scale fees are not liable to increase in that period 

unless there is a change in scope. We have therefore set the planned audit fee at the scale 

fee level which assumes the overall level of risk in relation to the audit of the 2013-14 

Agenda Item 9
Page 20



Work completed 

Ernst & Young  3 

financial statements, Whole of Government Accounts and value for money conclusion is not 

significantly different from that of 2012-13. We will update our risk assessment and 

undertake more detailed planning for the 2013-14 audit after we complete the 2012-13 

audit.

Agenda Item 9
Page 21



Timetable 

Ernst & Young  4 

2. Timetable 

Audit Committee timeline 

 The deliverables we have agreed to provide to you through the 2012-13 Audit Committee 

cycle are set out at Appendix 1.  

 

. 

Agenda Item 9
Page 22



Appendix 1: Audit Progress on Deliverables 

Ernst & Young  5 

Appendix 1: Audit Progress on Deliverables 

 

Progress against key 

deliverables 

   

Key deliverable Timetable 

in plan 

Status Comments 

Fee letter December  

2012 

Completed December 2012 

Audit plan March  

- April 

2013 

Completed  April 2013 

Report to those 

charged with 

governance   

September 

2013 

  

Auditor’s report 

(including opinion 

and value for money 

conclusion)  

September 

2013 

  

Audit completion 

certificate 

September 

2013 

  

Auditor’s report on 

WGA return 

September 

2013 

  

Annual audit letter October 

2013 

  

Annual report on 

certification of 

claims and returns 

December 

2013 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 23



 

 

 

Agenda Item 9
Page 24



Introduction

April 2013
Agenda Item 9

Page 25



2

Government and economic news





Agenda Item 9
Page 26



3

Agenda Item 9
Page 27



4

Agenda Item 9
Page 28



5

Health and local government working together 

Agenda Item 9
Page 29



6

Regulation and inspection

Agenda Item 9
Page 30



7

Agenda Item 9
Page 31



8

 Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

 Carbon Reduction Commitment

 Exit packages

 Conceptual Framework

 Financial Instruments

Accounting and governance news

Agenda Item 9
Page 32



9

Agenda Item 9
Page 33



10

Find out more

Agenda Item 9
Page 34



11

National Fraud Initiative-the latest

Agenda Item 9
Page 35



About Ernst & Young

Agenda Item 9
Page 36



 
 

 
 

Meeting: Audit Committee 

Date: 24 June 2013  

Subject: Internal Audit Annual Audit Opinion 

Report of: Chief Finance Officer 

Summary: This is the annual report of the Head of Internal Audit and Risk to those 
charged with governance on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of 
Central Bedfordshire Council’s financial and other management internal 
controls. 
 

 

 
Advising Officer: Chief Finance Officer 

Contact Officer: Kathy Riches , Head of Internal Audit and Risk 

Public/Exempt: Public  

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Audit Committee 

 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

The activities of Internal Audit are crucial to the governance arrangements of the 
organisation and as such are supporting all of the priorities of the Council. 
 
Financial: 

1. None directly from this report.  However, sound systems assist in preventing 
loss of resources (by other wastage or fraud), thereby improving effectiveness 
and efficiency. 
 

Legal: 

2. None directly from this report. 
 

Risk Management: 

3. No risk management implications come directly from this report but the Audit 
Plan was produced using a risk based approach, following the completion of a 
detailed Audit Needs Assessment which took into account strategic and 
service area risks. 
  

Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

4. None directly from this report. 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 37



 
 

 

Equalities/Human Rights: 

5. None directly from this report. 
 

Public Health 

6. None directly from this report. 
 

Community Safety: 

7. None directly from this report. 
 

Sustainability: 

8. None directly from this report. 
 

Procurement: 

9. None directly from this report. 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Committee is asked to consider and comment on the contents of the report. 
 

 
Background 
 
10. 
 

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011 require the Council to maintain an 
adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting records and 
of its system of internal control in accordance with proper internal audit 
practices.  The applicable standard for 2012/13 was the CIPFA Code of 
Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government 2006 (the Code).  In 
accordance with the Code, the Head of Internal Audit is required to provide a 
written report to those charged with governance, timed to support the Annual 
Governance Statement, which should include an opinion on the overall 
adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s control environment. 
 

11 This report: 

• Presents an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of 
Central Bedfordshire’s internal control environment, along with any 
qualifications to that opinion 

• Summarises  audit work undertaken from which that opinion is derived 

• Highlights significant issues identified as part of Internal Audit’s work, 
including those that are particularly relevant to the Annual Governance 
Statement 

• Compares the Internal Audit work actually undertaken with the work that 
was planned and summarises the performance of the internal audit 
function against its performance measures and criteria.  

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 38



 
 

 

Responsibilities 
 
12. It is a management responsibility to develop and maintain the internal control 

framework and to ensure compliance.  It is the responsibility of Internal Audit 
to form an independent opinion on the adequacy of the system of internal 
control. 
 

Internal Control Environment 
 
13. The Code defines the control environment as comprising the Council’s 

systems of governance, risk management and internal control. 
 

14. In order to form an opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
control environment, the internal audit activity is planned to provide coverage 
of financial controls through review of the key financial systems, and internal 
controls through a range of operating activity both within directorates and 
cross cutting, using a risk based approach.  The work undertaken by Internal 
Audit helps inform the Annual Governance Statement. 
 

The Audit Methodology 
 
15. During 2012/13 Internal Audit complied with the CIPFA Code of Practice.  

There are documented Terms of Reference, as set out in the Internal Audit 
Charter, that specify the objectives and scope of Internal Audit.  The Head of 
Internal Audit and Risk has undertaken a self assessment of compliance with 
the Code.  In accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2011 the Chief Finance Officer has carried out a review of the 
effectiveness of the System of Internal Audit.  The scope of the review 
covered compliance with the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit 2006, 
and reporting on performance and outcomes to the Audit Committee.   
 

16. The Internal Audit Strategy and Plan for 2012/13 was approved by the Audit 
Committee in April 2012. 
 

17. The Internal Audit Plan identified the individual audit assignments. The 
activity was undertaken using a systematic risk based approach.  The 
objectives for each activity were determined and risks in the processes that 
supported that activity were identified and set down in terms of reference that 
outlined the objectives and scope for each audit.  The work was planned and 
performed so as to obtain all the information and explanations necessary to 
provide sufficient evidence in forming an overall opinion on the adequacy of 
the internal control framework. 
   

18. Internal Audit reports provide an overall conclusion on the control 
environment for each system reviewed.  A summary of the conclusions for 
each audit is attached as Appendix A to this report.  The definitions of each 
conclusion are attached as Appendix B. 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 39



 
 

19. To provide quality assurance over the audit output, audit assignments are 
allocated to staff according to their skills and experience.  Each auditor has a 
designated Audit Manager to perform quality reviews at four stages of the 
audit assignment:  the audit brief (terms of reference), file review, draft report 
and final report stages.  In addition, the Head of Internal Audit and Risk 
reviews all reports. 
 

20. In addition to this annual report, the Audit Committee receive regular 
progress reports throughout the year. 
 

The Internal Audit Team 
 
21. During 2012/13 the Internal Audit Service was delivered by a team of suitably 

qualified auditors, supported by external contractors.  Each member of the 
team undertakes a regular Performance Development Review (PDR) and 
participates in Continuing Professional Development (CPD) as appropriate. 
  

Head of Internal Audit’s Opinion on the System of Internal Control 
 
22. The CIPFA Code of Practice on Internal Audit requires the Head of Internal 

Audit to provide an overall opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal control environment.   
 

23. The Internal Audit work undertaken during the year has enabled Internal 
Audit to provide an objective assessment of whether systems and controls 
are operating effectively.  In giving an audit opinion, however, it should be 
noted that assurance can never be absolute.  However, the scope of the 
activity undertaken is sufficient for reasonable assurance to be placed on the 
work. 
 

24. Ernst and Young, as the Council’s external auditors, have reviewed the work 
undertaken by Internal Audit on the managed audits and have been able to 
place reliance on the work, and have been in agreement with the audit 
opinions given.   
 

25. A summary of the work undertaken during the year, forming the basis of the 
audit opinion on the control environment, is shown at Appendix A of this 
report. 
 

26. The opinion on the Council’s System of Internal Control is that overall it 
continues to be adequate.  In general the key controls in place are adequate 
and effective such that reasonable assurance can be placed on the operation 
of the Council’s functions.  
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 40



 
 

27. This conclusion is based on the following: 

• A Code of Financial Governance is in place, and is incorporated within 
the Constitution. 

• Financial Procedures support the Code of Financial Governance and 
these have been refreshed and updated during the year.  

• A Financial Scheme of Management is in place. 

• Procedures and processes have been documented in a number of key 
areas. 

• Adequate controls were found to be in place in a number of areas. 

• Progress has been made in addressing many of the high risk Internal 
Audit recommendations made. 

• There has been a stable senior finance management structure in 
place during the year,  

• Assurances on key strategic risks have been mapped during the year. 

• Internal audit work on the fundamental systems has generally shown a 
positive direction of travel, and  

• Full assurance opinions were given to both the Council Tax and 
National Non Domestic Rates (NNDR) managed audit reviews. 

 
28. It should be noted that most audits undertaken have resulted in reports 

identifying areas for improvement which have been well received by 
managers, and actions agreed to address weaknesses in control.  The 
implementation of these actions is tracked by Internal Audit and the progress 
against the implementation of high recommendations is regularly reported to 
the Audit Committee. 
 

29. In arriving at the opinion the following has been taken into account: 

• The results of the audits undertaken as part of the 2012/13 plan 

• The results of follow up action in respect of previous audits 

• Whether or not any limitations have been placed on the scope of 
Internal Audit – of which there have been none. 

 
30. The following key concerns were identified and these have been reflected in 

the Annual Governance Statement: 

• Some key controls are not operating effectively in the payroll systems 
resulting in a limited assurance opinion.  Controls in this area need to be 
strengthened.    Some improvements on last year have been noted, 
however, further action is required to fully address the control 
weaknesses identified. The payroll service was brought back in house 
from 1st April 2012.  This resulted in a review of processes   A SAP 
Optimisation project is in progress, and this will be further developed 
during 2013/14.   

• Significant progress was made during 2012/13 to develop a 
comprehensive IT Disaster Recovery Plan.  Further work is currently in 
progress. The Audit Committee has received regular updates on this 
during the year.  

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 41



 
 

 

Delivery of the 2012/13 Internal Audit Plan   
 
31. The operation of the key financial systems is a key part of the internal control 

environment.  The table at Appendix A sets out the outcome of the reviews of 
these systems, and indicates whether the opinions are final or provisional, as 
some of the work is still ongoing.  The opinions given during 2011/12 are 
included for comparison.  The appendix also summarises other reviews 
undertaken during the year. 
 

32. The reviews of the key financial systems (Managed Audits) help inform the 
Annual Governance Statement.  From the review of 11 key systems for which 
an opinion has been determined, 2 have given full assurance, 8 were 
“adequate”, 1 was “limited” and none were “unsatisfactory”.  There has been 
an improvement in the opinion awarded to both the National Non Domestic 
Rates (NNDR) and Council Tax systems. It should be noted that the opinions 
given reflect the controls in place across the whole year.  Although several of 
the Phase 2 reports have still to be finalised, no new key issues of concern 
have been identified. 
 

33. Audit work is not just limited to implementing the audit plan.  Internal Audit is 
involved in other areas advising on systems development and using their 
skills to provide other general advice to service areas. Internal Audit has 
participated in a number of projects, providing advice on controls required.  
These projects include the Children’s Case Management System (CCMS), 
the Local Welfare Provision Board, SAP Optimisation, SWIFT Disaggregation 
and the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard Scheme (PCIDSS). 
In addition, individual grant claims have been audited, where required. 
 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)  
 
34. During 2012/13, we continued to complete work on the National Fraud 

Initiative (NFI).  This involves supplying data to the Audit Commission for 
matching purposes.  Work on investigating the resulting positive matches is 
ongoing. Work includes matches on pension payments to registered deaths, 
matching payrolls between authorities, and other matches including UK 
visas, blue badges, private residential care and Housing Benefits.  
 

35. The Internal Audit team has also assisted other authorities undertake their 
NFI enquiries by providing information to support their investigations.   
 

Anti Fraud Work and Special Investigations 
 
36. Internal Audit finalised work on one investigation during the year.  The 

outcome of this was reported to the January Audit Committee. 
 

37. Internal Audit continues to operate the Fraud Hotline.  None of the calls 
received have resulted in an audit investigation. In all cases, the calls 
received have related either to fraud in other organisations or allegations of 
Housing Benefit Fraud and the information has been forwarded appropriately.   
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 42



 
 

Schools 
 
38. The rolling programme of school audits has continued during 2012/13.  

During the year final reports were issued to 16 schools. The opinions given 
for the finalised reviews are set out at Appendix A. 
 

Performance Management  
 
39. The Internal Audit Charter approved by the Audit Committee in April 2012 

requires Internal Audit to report its progress on some Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI).  Overall, performance has been positive and where targets 
have not been met, action will be taken aimed at improving performance. The 
table below summarises the results for the year, and also includes the 
previous year’s indicators, for comparative purposes. 
 

40. The indicators include both CBC audit activities and school activity.  
 

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 43



 
 

41. Activities for 1 April 2012 – 31  March  2013 

KPI Definition 2012/13 2011/12 

  How we 
performed 

Our 
target 

How we 
performed 

Our 
target 

KPI01 Percentage of 
total audit 
days 
completed. 

100% 80% 94% 
 

80% 

KPI02 Percentage of 
the number of 
planned 
reviews 
completed to 
final report 
stage. 

80% 80% 80% 80% 

KPI03 Percentage of 
audit reviews 
completed 
within the 
planned time 
budget. 

60% 80% 59% 80% 

KPI04 Time taken to 
draft reports: 
Percentage of 
reviews where 
the first final 
draft report 
was returned 
by auditee 
within 10 
available 
working days 
of receipt of 
the report from 
the Auditor. 

76% 80% 58% 80% 

KPI05 Time taken to 
issue a final 
report: 
Percentage of 
reviews where 
the final report 
was issued 
within 10 
available 
working days 
of receipt of 
the response 
agreeing to the 
formal report.  

85% 80% 100% 80% 

KPI06 Overall 
customer 
satisfaction. 
 

93% 80% 83% 80% 

   

Agenda Item 11
Page 44



 
 

42. Analysis of indicators: 
 
KPI01 – During the year we delivered a total of 1,297 productive audit days 
against a total of 1,300 planned days for the year.  This exceeds our target 
for the period.  
 
KPI02 – This KPI measures final reports issued as at 31 March 2013.  80% 
of the planned reviews had been completed to final report stage, which was 
in line with the target. However, this excludes work on the second phase of 
the managed audits which was in progress as at 31st March. Performance 
was consistent with the previous year. 
 
KPI03 – Only 60% of planned reviews have been completed within the 
planned time budgets.  As agreed at the April Audit Committee this 
performance measure has been reviewed.  Following discussions with the 
Chief Finance Officer, for 2013/14, the target will measure the percentage of 
reviews that have been completed within a one day tolerance of the planned 
time budget, and a target of 75% has been set.  
 
KPI04 - This indicator measures the time taken for Internal Audit to receive a 
response from the auditee to the draft report.  During 2012/13, 76% of draft 
reports were responded to within the target set.  This represents a significant 
improvement over the previous year. Internal Audit will continue to work with 
departments to encourage a prompt response. 
 
KPI05 - This indicator measures the time taken by Internal Audit to issue the 
final report upon receipt of an agreed response from the auditee.  The 
reduction in performance compared to last year is due to sickness absence 
within the Internal Audit Team. 
 
KPI06 – A total of 26 surveys have been sent out.  19 responses have been 
received to date.   The responses received have been positive, and 
demonstrate an improvement over the previous year. 
 

Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit and the Effectiveness of the 
Systems of Internal Control 
 
Background (Accounts and Audit Regulations 2011) 
 
43. All councils are required to publish an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) 

to accompany their Statement of Accounts, in accordance with the 2011 
Accounts and Audit Regulations. Assessments of the Effectiveness of 
Internal Audit and the Effectiveness of Systems of Internal Control are two 
key aspects of the AGS.  Central Bedfordshire Council has reviewed both 
systems for 2012/13 and the findings are incorporated into the Annual Audit 
opinion and subsequently into the AGS. 
 

Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit. 
 
44. As referred to in paragraph 15 above, a review of the Effectiveness of 

Internal Audit was undertaken by the Chief Finance Officer. 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 45



 
 

Review of the Effectiveness of the Systems of Internal Control 
 
45. The Council’s review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is 

informed by: 
 

• Directorate assurance based on management information, 
performance information, officer assurance statements and Scrutiny 
reports 

• the work undertaken by Internal Audit during the year 

• the work undertaken by the external auditor reported in their annual 
audit and inspection letter 

• other work undertaken by independent inspection bodies. 
 

46. The Head of Internal Audit and Risk has supported the Head of Legal 
Services (Monitoring Officer) to collect evidence required for the production 
of the AGS. 
 

47. Directors have been requested to sign statements on the Effectiveness of 
Internal Control for 2012/13, confirming that during the year they were: 
 

• Ensuring that there are arrangements in place for establishing 
Directorate objectives and compliance to corporate priorities; 

• Ensuring compliance to the Council’s governance arrangements 
(Constitution, Ethical Framework, and Policies & Regulations); 

• Ensuring arrangements for sound budgetary controls; 

• Effectively monitoring and managing performance; 

• Reporting to the appropriate Member Committees; 

• Responding promptly to internal & external audits & inspections; 

• Continuously managing business risks and service continuity 
arrangements.  

 
48. The work undertaken by Internal Audit on the systems of internal control 

disclosed that generally they were effective during 2012/13.  However, some 
areas of concern were identified and these are summarised in paragraph 30 
above, and are reflected in the Annual Governance Statement.  
 

Conclusion and Next Steps  
 
49. The work undertaken by Internal Audit has enabled the team to advise 

management of some of the control weaknesses identified at an early stage, 
and make recommendations designed to enhance and strengthen controls 
and mitigate risks. 
 

50. The internal control environment operated adequately during 2012/13, 
although some areas of concern identified in the AGS must be addressed 
promptly. 
 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 46



 
 

 
Appendices:  
 
Appendix A – Summary of Internal Audit Activity 2012/13  
    
Appendix B – Definition of Internal Audit Opinions  
 
Background Papers:  
 
None. 
 
Location of papers:  
 
N/A 
 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 
 

Internal Audit Activity during 2012/13 
 

The table below provides a summary of audit activity during 2012/13.   
 

 

Review Title Progress Audit Opinion 
2012/13 

Audit Opinion 
2011/12 

2012/13 Managed 
Audits 

 (*indicates 
provisional 
Opinion) 

 

Accounts Payable 
 

Final Phase 1 report 
issued. 
 
Draft Phase 2 report 
in preparation. 
 

Adequate 
 
 
 
 

Adequate 

Accounts Receivable 
 

Final Phase 1 report 
issued. 
 
Draft Phase 2 report 
in preparation. 
 

Adequate 
 
 
 

Adequate 

Main Accounting 
System 
 

Final Phase 1 report 
issued. 
 
Draft Phase 2 report 
in preparation. 
 

Adequate 
 
 
 

Adequate 

Cash and Banking 
 

Final Phase 1 report 
issued. 
 
No Phase 2 testing 
required. 
 

Adequate Adequate 
 
 
Full 

Payroll 
 

Final Phase 1 report 
issued. 

Phase 2 report being 
drafted. 

Limited 

  

  

  Limited  
 
 
 
 Limited 

Asset Management 
 

Final Phase 1 report 
issued. 
 
Work on Phase 2 is 
ongoing and will be 
finalised following 
the year end 
accounts closure 
process. 
  

Adequate Adequate. 
 

SWIFT Financials 
 

Draft report in 
preparation. 

To be determined. Limited 

Agenda Item 11
Page 49



 

Review Title Progress Audit Opinion 
2012/13 

Audit Opinion 
2011/12 

Housing Rents 
 

Final phase 1 report 
issued. 
 
No Phase 2 testing 
required. 
 

Adequate. Adequate 
 
 
Adequate 

SAP Access and 
Security  
 

Work is currently 
ongoing and a draft 
report will be issued 
shortly. 
 

To be determined. Adequate 

IT Disaster Recovery 
(including Back Up 
and Restore 
Arrangements) 

Work is currently 
ongoing and a draft 
report will be issued 
shortly. 
 

To be determined. Limited. 

Treasury 
Management 

Final Phase 1 report 
issued. 
 
Phase 2 report being 
drafted. 
 

Adequate Adequate 
 
 
Adequate 

Council Tax 
 

Final Phase 1 report 
issued. 
 
Final Phase 2 report 
issued. 
 

Full 
 
 
Full 

Adequate 
 
 
Adequate 

NNDR Final Phase 1 report 
issued. 
 
Final Phase 2 report 
issued. 
 

Full 
 
 
Full 

Adequate 
 
 
Adequate 
 

Housing and Council 
Tax Benefits 
 

Final Phase 1 report 
issued. 
 
Draft Phase 2 report 
prepared. 
 

Adequate Adequate 
 
 
Adequate 

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 50



 

Other Audit Reviews 
Completed  

Progress Opinion 
(*indicates provisional 

Opinion) 

Children’s Services   

Commissioning/Out of Authority 
Placements 

Final report issued Adequate 

Social Care, Health and 
Housing 

  

Linsell House 
 

Final report issued Adequate 

Local Management of 
Establishments – Ampthill Day 
Centre 

Final report issued Adequate  

Village Care Scheme Final report issued Full 

Association of Directors of Adult 
Social Services Workbook 
(ADASS) – self assessment 
model for car providers 

Final report issued Full 

Assurance on Client Charging Final report issued Adequate 

Sustainable Communities   

Leighton Buzzard Theatre Follow 
Up 

Final report issued Satisfactory Progress 

Section 106 Follow Up Final report issued Satisfactory Progress 

Governance   

Ethical Governance Draft report issued Adequate* 

Corporate Services   

Budget Management Final report issued Adequate 

Debt Collection Arrangements Final report issued Adequate 

Contracts   

Contract Management Final report issued Limited 

Service Level Agreements (SLA) 
Follow Up 

Draft report issued Satisfactory Progress 

Pro Active Anti Fraud Reviews   

Petty Cash Imprests Final report issued n/a 

Cash Income Final report issued n/a 

Appendix E Payments Final report issued n/a 

Grant Claims:   

Local Transport Capital Block 
Funding 

Work completed n/a 

Luton and South Bedfordshire 
Partnership 

Work completed n/a 

NHS Grant 2011/12 Work completed n/a 

Re-enablement Grant Work completed n/a 

Winter Pressures Grant Work completed n/a 

School Audits    

Caldecote Lower Final report issued Limited 

Derwent Lower  Final report issued Limited 

Downside Lower Final report issued Limited 

Dunton Lower and 
Wrestlingworth Lower 
(combined visit) 

Final report issued Adequate 

Agenda Item 11
Page 51



Edward Peake Middle Final report issued Adequate 

Hillcrest  Final report issued Adequate 

Hockliffe Lower Final report issued Adequate 

Kensworth Lower Final report issued Adequate 

Ivel Valley Lower Final report issued Adequate 

LInslade Lower Final report issued Adequate 

Oakbank  Final report issued Limited 

Russell Lower Final report issued Limited 

Sandy Upper Final report issued No assurance 

St Mary’s Lower, Caddington Final report issued Adequate 

Watling Lower Follow Up Final report issued Satisfactory Progress 

 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 52



 
 

Key Issues arising from completed  reviews  
 
1. 2012/13 Accounts Payable 
 This review covered policies and procedures, and the Accounts Payable 

processes, including ordering, goods receipting, authorisation of invoices, 
reconciliations and controls over master data. The overall audit opinion was 
adequate. 
 

2. 2012/13 Accounts Receivable 
 This review covered policies and procedures, and the Accounts Receivable 

processes, including invoicing, amendments, accounting arrangements, debt 
monitoring and write offs.  The overall audit opinion was adequate. 
 

3. 2012/13 Main Accounting System 
 This review covered policies and procedures, accounting for financial 

transactions, transfers from feeder systems, controls to ensure accuracy, and 
reporting mechanisms.  The overall opinion was adequate. 
 

4. 2012/13 Cash and Banking 
 This review covered policies and procedures and the processes for ensuring 

transactions are recorded and supported by appropriate documentation. It also 
reviewed the access controls and the contract for the provision of the Capita 
income system. The audit opinion for the Phase 1 review was adequate and 
no Phase 2 work was required. 
 

5. 2012/13 Payroll 
 The review covered policies and procedures, controls over standing data, the 

accuracy of payments and deductions, controls over payments to and received 
from statutory agencies, the accurate posting of data, and compliance with 
legislative requirements. The audit opinion for Phase 1 was limited, which was 
also the opinion given in 2011/12. Some improvements have been noted at 
Phase 2 but these are unlikely to impact on the opinion given at Phase 1. 
 

6. 2012/13 Asset Management 
 The review covered policies and procedures, capital expenditure, depreciation, 

disposals, impairments and security of assets.  The audit opinion for Phase 1 
was adequate.  Phase 2 will be undertaken after the closure of accounts has 
been finalised. 
 

7. 2012/13 SWIFT Financials 
 SWIFT financials provides key accounting functionality to directorates 

providing social care services. This review covered the security of the system 
including passwords and access rights, input processing and output controls, 
data back up arrangements, and the audit trail. A number of control issues 
were identified.  
 

8. 2012/13 Housing Rents 
 This review covered policies and procedures and the processes to support the 

calculation, receipt and recording of amounts due. The audit opinion was 
adequate for Phase 1 and no Phase 2 work was required. 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 53



9. 2012/13 SAP Access and Security  
 This review forms part of the managed audit process and focuses upon SAP 

Access and Security arrangements and included rudimentary testing of the 
SAP landscape/environment.  There are a number of fundamental systems 
including Main Accounting System, Payroll, Accounts Payable, Accounts 
Receivable, Asset Management, Council Tax, NNDR and Housing Rents 
which rely on the robustness of the underlying SAP infrastructure.    
 

10. 2012/13 IT DR ( Disaster Recovery) – including Backup and Restore 
 This review forms part of the managed audit process and focuses upon IT 

Disaster Recovery arrangements.  There are a number of fundamental 
systems including Main Accounting, Payroll, Accounts Payable, Accounts 
Receivable, Asset Management, Council Tax, NNDR and Housing Rents 
which rely upon the robustness of the underlying IT infrastructure. Progress is 
being made to develop a comprehensive IT Disaster Recovery Plan. Further 
work is currently in progress.  The Audit Committee has received regular 
updates on this during the year.  
 

11. 2012/13 Treasury Management 
 This review covered policies and procedures, compliance with existing 

statutory and best practice guidance, performance monitoring, authorisations, 
accounting treatment, cash flow, investment and borrowing controls and 
separation of duties. The overall audit opinion for Phase 1 was adequate and 
this is not expected to change for the Phase 2 work. 
 

12. 2012/13 Council Tax 
 The scope of this review was similar to the above, but covering Council Tax.  

The overall audit opinion was full assurance.  In arriving at this opinion, it is 
recognised that the majority of key controls are in place.   
 

13. 2012/13 NNDR 
 This review covered the NNDR processes including the identification and 

recording of commercial properties, amendments to accounts, discount and 
exemption processes, overdue account monitoring and recovery action, the 
recording of transactions within the authority’s accounts, billing processes and 
business continuity procedures.  The overall audit opinion was full assurance.  
In arriving at this opinion, it is recognised that the majority of key controls are 
in place.   
 

14. 2012/13 Housing and Council Tax Benefits 
 This review covered processes from the receipt of correspondence, 

assessment of claims, supporting evidence, payment processes, fraud 
detection, system security arrangements, compliance with DWP requirements 
and performance management. The overall audit opinion for Phase 1 was 
adequate. Phase 2 testing has focussed on controls and processes relating to 
the annual Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim as well as following up outstanding 
recommendations from Phase 1. 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 54



 
15. Commissioning/Out of Authority Placements 
 This review covered Out of Authority Placements.  These are used where a 

young person’s requirements as set out in their Statement of Special 
Education Needs either cannot be met locally or where the Council has been 
instructed via a tribunal.  The overall audit opinion was adequate. 
 

16. Linsell House 
 This audit reviewed the controls around policies and procedures, security of 

income and residents’ funds as well as controls over payroll and purchasing 
expenditure. In addition the controls around unofficial (amenity) funds were 
tested.  The overall opinion was adequate. 
 

17. Local Management of Establishments – Ampthill Day Centre 
 This audit reviewed the controls around policies and procedures, security of 

income, controls over payroll and purchasing expenditure and amenity funds.  
The overall opinion was adequate. 
 

18. Village Care Scheme 
 This review covered Village Care Schemes.  These are groups set up and run 

by local residents to provide a structured “good neighbour” service to fellow 
residents without close family or friends living nearby. Central Bedfordshire 
Council has a contract with Bedfordshire Rural Communities Charity (BRCC) to 
provide these services on behalf of the Council. The review gave a full 
assurance opinion. 
. 

19. Association of Directors of Adult Social Services Workbook (ADASS) – 
self assessment model for care providers 

 This review covered the ADASS Self Assessment Workbook.  The Care 
Quality Commission stopped awarding quality ratings (‘star ratings’) under the 
Care Standards Act 2000 in 2010 and, as a result of this, the Association of 
Directors of Adult Social Care (ADASS) implemented a self assessment 
process made up of 130 questions over 5 outcome areas.  This exercise 
reviewed self assessment returns from providers and confirmed that Council 
Contract/Compliance officers had undertaken additional work to review the 
returns and request further information as appropriate.  The review gave a full 
assurance opinion. 
 

20. Assurance on Client Charging 
 This audit reviewed the controls over charging of clients using Adult Social 

Care services. A sample of clients across various service areas was selected 
and checked to provide assurance that they had received a financial 
assessment, that the assessment had been completed accurately and that 
they had been billed for any contributions due.  The overall opinion was 
adequate.   
 

21. Leighton Buzzard Theatre Follow Up 
 This review was an exercise to follow up the recommendations made in the 

original audit, undertaken during 2010/11, which had received a limited 
assurance opinion.  Satisfactory progress had been made in implementing 
recommendations made. 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 55



 
22. Section 106 Follow Up 
 This review was an exercise to follow up the recommendations made in the 

original audit, undertaken during 2010/11, which had received a limited 
assurance opinion.  Satisfactory progress had been made in implementing 
recommendations made. 
 

23. Ethical Governance 
 This audit reviewed the arrangements and guidance for Members acting in an 

official, and unofficial, capacity on bodies external to the Council.  
 

24. Budget Management 
 The purpose of the audit was to provide assurance to management that key 

controls associated with budget management are operating effectively and in 
doing so examined roles and responsibilities, adequacy of skills and training, 
budget management information and considered the extent key factors 
influencing individual budgets by Budget Managers and Finance Managers were 
considered and challenged. The overall opinion was adequate. 
 

25. Debt Collection Arrangements 
 This review covered policies, procedures and other arrangements to ensure 

debts are collected promptly and in doing so debtors are treated appropriately 
and proportionately. The overall opinion was adequate.  
 

26. Contract Management 
 This review focussed on the central guidance for Contract Management, the 

supporting documentation for a sample of the Council’s key contracts and the 
processes for review and approval of contract extensions.  A limited audit 
opinion was given, and the high recommendation arising has been regularly 
tracked by the Audit Committee. 
 

27. Service Level Agreements (SLA) Follow Up 
 This follow up review sought to confirm the implementation of the 

recommendations arising from the original audit of SLAs in 2010-11. Overall 
given the reduction in the number of shared services since the original review 
and the actions taken by management following the original review, the follow 
up concluded that satisfactory progress had been made. 
 

28. Pro Active Anti Fraud Review- Petty Cash Imprests 
 This review covered policies, procedures and other arrangements to ensure 

Petty Cash/imprest Bank Account Administration was operating effectively.  No 
significant issues of concern were identified. 
 

29. Pro Active Anti Fraud Review – Cash Income 
 This review covered policies, procedures and other arrangements to ensure 

cash is managed, recorded, and reported correctly. This audit focussed upon 
the areas of Library Services and Registration and Coroner Services. No 
significant issues of concern were identified. 
 

Agenda Item 11
Page 56



 
30. Pro Active Anti Fraud Review – Appendix E Payments 
 The primary focus of this proactive anti fraud review was to examine the 

excess travel costs reimbursed to employees for potential fraudulent claims. It 
also considered the extent to which the assessed risks are being managed by 
Budget Managers and Human Resources (HR) and reviewed compliance with 
the Council’s own agreed policies and procedures.  No significant issues of 
concern were identified. 
 

31. School Audits 
 The audit reviews for schools focus on the main systems, including 

purchasing, financial management, payroll, financial returns, governance, 
asset management and data management, bank accounts and the 
administration of the school fund.  Consideration is also given to any concerns 
raised by the Schools Finance Team, or the Head Teacher. 
 

 Following each audit, an action plan is prepared and agreed with the school.  
Where any significant weaknesses are identified, a follow up audit visit is 
undertaken to provide assurance that the agreed actions have been 
implemented.   

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 57



Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B 
 

 
Audit Opinions 

 
 

Full Assurance Adequate Assurance Limited Assurance No Assurance 

 
Good controls 
 
Low risk of not meeting 
objectives 
 
Low risk of fraud, 
negligence, loss, 
damage to reputation 
 
Level of Assurance: 
High 

 
Adequate controls 
 
Medium/Low risk of not 
meeting objectives 
 
Medium/Low risk of 
fraud, negligence, loss, 
damage to reputation 
 
Level of Assurance: 
Medium 

 
Limited controls 
 
Medium risk of not 
meeting objectives 
 
Medium risk of fraud, 
negligence, loss, 
damage to reputation 
 
Level of Assurance: 
Medium/Low 

 
Inadequate controls 
 
High risk of not 
meeting objectives 
 
High risk of fraud, 
negligence, loss, 
damage to reputation 
 
Level of Assurance: 
Low 

 

Agenda Item 11
Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

Meeting: Audit Committee 

Date: 24 June 2013 

Subject: Tracking of Audit Recommendations 

Report of: Chief Finance Officer 

Summary: This report summarises the high risk recommendations arising from 
Internal Audit reports and sets out the progress made in their 
implementation.  
 

 

 
Advising Officer: Charles Warboys, Chief Finance Officer 

Contact Officer: Kathy Riches , Head of Internal Audit and Risk 

Public/Exempt: Public  

Wards Affected: All 

Function of: Audit Committee 

 

CORPORATE IMPLICATIONS 

Council Priorities: 

An effective internal audit function will indirectly contribute to all of the Council’s 
priorities. 
 
Financial: 

1. Although there are no direct financial risks from the issues identified in the 
report, the outcome of implementing audit recommendations is for the Council 
to enhance internal control, and better manage its risks, thereby increasing 
protection from adverse events. 
 

Legal: 

2. None arising directly from the report. 
 

Risk Management: 

3. None arising directly from the report.  However, the Audit Committee has a 
role in providing independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk 
management framework and associated control environment, in line with the 
Corporate Risk Management Strategy. 
 

Staffing (including Trades Unions): 

4. None directly from this report. 
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 61



 
 

 

Equalities/Human Rights: 

5. None directly from this report. 
 

Public Health: 

6. None directly from this report. 
 

Community Safety: 

7. None directly from this report. 
 

Sustainability: 

8. None directly from this report. 
 

Procurement: 

9. None directly from this report. 
 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Committee is asked to consider and comment on the updates as presented. 
 
Background 
 
10. 
 

One of the purposes of the Audit Committee is to provide independent 
assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework and the 
associated control environment.   
 

11. To further strengthen the Audit Committee’s role in monitoring the internal 
control environment within the Council, Internal Audit has developed a system 
for monitoring and reporting progress against high risk recommendations 
arising from internal audit inspections.  
 

12. This paper represents the regular summary of high risk recommendations 
made to date, along with the progress made against implementation of those 
recommendations.   
 

Tracking High Risk Recommendations 
 
13. This report sets out the position as at the end of May 2013.  In order to 

distinguish between the more recent recommendations made during 2012/13 
and older outstanding recommendations, the tracking has been presented as 
two tables – one summarising the reports issued prior to April 2012 and 
captured in previous monitoring reports to the Committee and the second table 
summarising reports containing high risk recommendations issued since the 
April 2012 Committee. 
  

Agenda Item 12
Page 62



 
 

14. Appendix A provides detail of progress made to date in addressing high risk 
recommendations contained in reports issued prior to April 2012 and 
previously reported to the Committee.   
 

15. Appendix C provides details of the remaining 2 high risk recommendations 
where implementation of the recommendation is running behind planned 
completion dates.  The Appendix includes the rationale behind the audit 
recommendation and an explanation for the deferred implementation.  
 

16. 
 

Table 1 – Summary of outstanding recommendations made prior to April 
2012  
 

Review Number of Outstanding 
Recommendations 

Payroll 2009-10 
 

1 

SAP Access and Security (incl IT DTR) 
2009/10 
 

1 

Total  
 

2 

 

17.  Since the last Committee two high recommendations have been addressed.  
These relate to the Main Accounting System and Teachers’ Pensions.  A full 
audit review of both these areas is included within the 2013/14 Audit Plan, to 
provide assurance that the revised procedures are robust. 
 

18. Appendix B sets out the reports issued since the April 2012 Audit Committee 
that contain further high risk recommendations.  The table below provides a 
summary by Directorate.  Three reports containing high risk recommendations 
have been issued since the last update. 
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 63



 
 

19. Table 2 -  Summary of Additional High Priority Recommendations Made 
Since April 2012 Audit  Committee  
 
 Corporate 

Resources/ 
ACE People 
and 
Organisation 

Children’s 
Services 

Sustainable 
Communities 

Social 
Care 
Health 
and 

Housing 

Total % 

No. of  
Reports 
containing 
high recs. 

3 0 0 3 6  

       
Recs:       
Completed 
GREEN 

5 0 0 5 10 63 

Ongoing- 
On schedule 
for 
completion 
within 
timescales 
GREEN 
 

4 0 0 0 4 25 

No work 
started  
Within  
target 
GREEN 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Ongoing 
with 
deadline 
missed 
AMBER 

1 0 0 1 2 12 

No work 
started 
Deadline 
missed 
RED 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 
Recs. 

10 0 0 6 16 100 

 

 
20. Appendix D provides the details of the 2 recommendations contained in Table 

2 where implementation of the recommendation is running behind planned 
completion dates.   
 

21. Wherever possible evidence has been obtained to verify the implementation of 
recommendations.  However, in some instances, verbal assurance has been 
obtained.  Where this is the case, further evidence will be obtained to support 
the assurances given. 
 

22. Progress will continue to be monitored.  The follow up of audit recommendations 
forms an integral part of the managed audit reviews. 
 

Future  Monitoring 
 
23. Officers responsible for the implementation of recommendations will be 

contacted regularly to provide updates on progress made.  Evidence will be 
required to support progress made.  Where recommendations are still being 
implemented these will continue to be monitored.   
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 64



 
 

 

Conclusion  
 
24. In total there are now only 4 recommendations that are now amber (underway, 

with deadline missed). No additional amber recommendations have been 
added since the last report to the Committee. The number of high priority 
recommendations being made has reduced, which reflects the embedding of 
controls within the key financial systems as the authority has developed. 
 

25. Further work is required to ensure that the outstanding recommendations are 
implemented and to monitor additional recommendations made during the 
year. 
 

26. This continuous tracking and reporting of progress on Internal Audit 
inspections to the Audit Committee ensures that the Committee has the 
means to monitor how effectively the high risk recommendations have been 
implemented.  
 

Appendices: 
 
Appendix A – Details of monitoring of High Priority Internal Audit recommendations - 
Reports issued prior to April 2012  
 
Appendix B - Details of monitoring of High Priority Internal Audit recommendations - 
Reports issued since April 2012  
 
Appendix C - Details on those recommendations made prior to April 2012 that remain 
outstanding  
 
Appendix D - Details on those recommendations made since April 2012 Audit 
Committee that remain outstanding    
 
Background Papers:  
 
None 
  
Location of papers:  
 
N/A 

 
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



Details of Monitoring of High Risk Internal Audit recommendations as at End May  2013

Reports issued during 2011/12 and earlier

CORPORATE RESOURCES/ACE 

PEOPLE AND ORGANISATION

Name Date of Report Original Expected 

completion of all 

Recommendation

s (Where 

identified)

Number of 

Recs

Completed 

GREEN

Ongoing - 

On 

schedule 

for 

completion 

with set 

timescales 

GREEN

Ongoing - 

with 

deadline 

missed 

AMBER

No work 

started - 

within 

target 

GREEN

No work 

started - 

target 

missed 

RED

App 3 ref

Payroll 2009-10 26/07/10 30/09/10 10 9 0 1 0 0 See R1

SAP Access and Security (incl IT DTR) 

2009/10

11/10/10 31/12/10 3 2 0 1 0 0 See R2

Total 13 11 0 2 0 0

06/06/13 Appendix A

A
genda Item

 12
P

age 67



P
age 68

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Details of Monitoring of High Risk Internal Audit recommendations as at End May 2013

Reports issued during 2012/13

CORPORATE RESOURCES/ ACE 

PEOPLE AND ORGANISATION

Name Date of Report Original Expected 

completion of all 

Recommendations 

(Where identified)

Number of 

Recs

Completed 

GREEN

Ongoing - 

On 

schedule 

for 

completion 

with set 

timescales 

GREEN

Ongoing - 

with 

deadline 

missed 

AMBER

No work 

started - 

within 

target 

GREEN

No work 

started - 

target 

missed 

RED

App 4 ref

Contract Management 01/08/12 end Sept 2012 1 0 0 1 0 0 See R1

SWIFT Financials 2011-12 13/08/12 end June 2012 4 4 0 0 0 0

Payroll 2012-13 Phase 1 27/02/13

end December 

2013

5 1 4 0 0 0

Total 10 5 4 1 0 0

SOCIAL CARE, HEALTH & HOUSING

Name Date of Report Original Expected 

completion of all 

Recommendations 

(Where identified)

Number of 

Recs

Completed 

GREEN

Ongoing - 

On 

schedule 

for 

completion 

with set 

timescales 

GREEN

Ongoing - 

with 

deadline 

missed 

AMBER

No work 

started - 

within 

target 

GREEN

No work 

started - 

target 

missed 

RED

App 4 ref

Housing Rents 2011-12 Phase 2 20/07/12 end April 2012 1 0 0 1 0 0 See R2

Assurance on Client Charging 2011-12 08/02/13 end Nov 2012 2 2 0 0 0 0

Ampthill Day Centre 28/02/13 end Jan 2013 3 3 0 0 0 0

Total 6 5 0 1 0 0

06/06/13 Appendix B

A
genda Item

 12
P

age 69



P
age 70

T
his page is intentionally left blank



End May 2013 Position 6/06/13. 

 

1 

  Appendix C 
 
Details on those recommendations outstanding 
Status – all Amber (Ongoing with deadline missed) 
 
Corporate Resources/ACE People and Organisations 

 
Payroll 2009/10 
 

Recommendation R1: 
It should be ensured that timesheets and travel claims are appropriately approved 
prior to payment. 
 

Rationale for Recommendation: 
The authorised signatory list of managers is incomplete, which hinders the ability to 
check the authorisations on expenses and travel claims thoroughly. 
 

Target Dates: 
August 2010 
September 2011(revised) 
March 2012(revised) 
June 2012 (revised) 
End December 2012 (revised) 
End April 2013 (revised) 
End June 2013  
End September 2013 
 

Current Position and Explanation for Slippage: 
 

Slippage in the implementation of this recommendation has occurred as the 
processing of travel and expense claims became part of the ESS/MSS 
implementation project.  This project enables claims to be completed and authorised 
on-line with the authorisation of claims being a line manager responsibility based on 
the organisation structure. Travel claims went “live” on 25th February 2013 and 
timesheets are expected to follow in June 2013. The new system will be audited 
during the 2013/14 Payroll audit.  The manual completion and authorisation of claim 
forms is expected to continue in some service areas for the next year due to 
restricted access to the necessary ICT; however an authorised signatory listing is 
planned to be in place for all areas not using ESS/MSS by September 2013. 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 12
Page 71



End May 2013 Position 6/06/13. 

 

2 

SAP Access and Security (incl. IT DR) Managed Audit 
 

Recommendation R2: 
A Disaster Recovery Plan should be developed and approved.  As a minimum, this 
should include; 

• the identification and prioritisation of key IT systems 

• the roles and responsibilities of relevant officers and third party suppliers 

• a set of IT procedures which should be executed initially to react to 
crises/disaster 

• escalation procedures 

• salvage procedures that deal with retrieval of items from affected sites 

• the recovery and reconfiguration of all IT and communication systems 

• details of additional accounts where monies may be sourced to aid recovery 
efforts 

• a schedule in respect of the testing of the plan 
 
 

Rationale for Recommendation: 
During 2009/10, there was no Disaster Recovery Plan. Recovery from the server 
failures in February 2010 gave highest priority to restoration of the IT infrastructure. 
Meetings and telephone conversations with Heads of Services and Directors were 
held to agree the recovery plan / priorities and time scales. No IT Disaster Recovery 
Strategy was found to be documented to describe the role and development of a 
Disaster Recovery Plan and to improve the recovery options of IT systems. 
 

Target Dates: 
December 2010. 
December 2011 (revised). 
September 2012 (revised) 
October 2012 (revised) 
March 2013 (revised) 
March 2014 (provisional – subject to approval of plan by CMT and updating of 
Business Impact Assessments – to be carried out by the Emergency Planning and 
Business Continuity Team). 
 

Current Position and Explanation for Slippage: 
 
A presentation was made on behalf of the Head of Information Assets to the last 
committee.  Following this meeting the Disaster Recovery Plan has been updated 
and a current draft contains details of the current operational capacity and a roadmap 
for planned architectural developments during 2013-14.  The plan demonstrates a 
positive direction of travel going forward for 2013/14 and it will be developed further 
to take account of revised Business Impact Assessments being carried out by the 
Emergency Planning and Business Continuity Team.   The draft plan is subject to 
approval by the Head of Information Assets. 
 

 

 
 

Agenda Item 12
Page 72



End May 2013 Position 6/06/13.  

 

1 

  Appendix D 
 
Details on those recommendations outstanding 
Status – all Amber (Ongoing with deadline missed) 
 
Corporate Services 
 
Contract Management 

 
Recommendation R1: 
The suite of documents that constitute the Procurement rules and guidance should 
be fully reviewed, updated and reissued to incorporate the detailed findings of this 
report. 
 

Rationale for Recommendation: 
The existing guidance relating to procurement and contract management needs to be 
updated and clarified, and reissued for the use by relevant officers in order to 
promote better management of contracts across the Council. 
 

Target Dates: 
End September 2012 (revised) 
End November 2012 (revised) 
End February 2013 (revised) 
End July 2013 
 

Current Position and Explanation for Slippage: 
Many of the guidance documents have been updated to reflect the audit findings; 
however the publication of these documents has been delayed due to the current 
processes around the restructure of the Procurement Team. The publication of the 
revised guidance documents is now subject to discussions with the Recovery Board 
in June 2013 to confirm the next steps. 
 
(See also Risk Update report – linked to Strategic risk STR0007, and operational 
risks RES020006, and RES020005). 
 

 
Social Care, Health & Housing 
 
Housing Rents 

 
Recommendation R2: 

Regular reconciliations of the Housing Rents system to SAP should be 
completed by Finance staff. 
 

Rationale for Recommendation: 
There is a risk that SAP as a central financial record maybe inaccurate, and the use 
of SAP for budget monitoring purposes may be compromised. 
 

Target Dates: 
30th April 2012 (revised) 
31st August 2012 (revised) 
30th September 2012 (revised) 
31st January 2013 
30th June 2013 (revised) 
31st July 2013 

Current Position and Explanation for Slippage: 

Agenda Item 12
Page 73



End May 2013 Position 6/06/13.  

 

2 

The first reconciliation to the 2012/13 financial year was completed on 15/03/2013.  
The two systems were reconciled up to the end of February 2013, but the 
reconciliation has yet to be completed regularly on a quarterly basis.  The first 
quarterly reconciliation will be completed in early July 2013 for the period April – June 
2013. 
 

 

Agenda Item 12
Page 74


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	8 Audit and Certification Fees 2013/14
	9 Audit Progress Report
	Progress Report Appendix 2 1369547_Local_government_Sector_Briefing-GPS_3_WEB

	11 Internal Audit Annual Audit Opinion
	130607  Appendix A  Internal Audit Annual Opinion -v2
	130531 APPENDIX B - Audit Opinion Definitions - PUBLIC

	12 Tracking of Audit Recommendations
	130603  Appendix A Tracking of High Recommendations made prior to April 2012
	130603  Appendix B Tracking of High Recommendations made since April 2012
	130603  Appendix C - Tracking of Audit Recs v1
	130603  Appendix D- tracking of Audit recs v1


